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UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTIONAGENCY ~ ~ ~
REGION 5

. In the Matter of: Docket No. CAA-05-2015-0038

Whiting Oil and Gas Cerporation
West Branch, Michigan

Proceeding to Assess a Civil Penalty

Under Section 113(d} of the Clean-Air-Act,
42 U.S.C. § 7413(d) Sl TEREL

Respondent. AT = -

i N L S R

Consent Agreement and Final Order

Preliminarv Statement

}7

2
1. This is an administrative action commenced and concluded under S3eneal :{d)

of the Clean Air Act (the CAA), 42 U.S.C. § 7413(d), and Sections 22.1(a)(2}, 22. 1g(b) and
22.18(t)(2) and (3) of the Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing the Adnnmstratwe,
Assessment. of Civil Penalties and the Revocation/Tenmination or Suspensio;\. of Permits
(“Consolidated Rules™), as codified at 40 C.F.R. Part 22.

2. Complatnant is the Director of the Air and Radiation Division,
U.S. Environmental Protection .A gency (“EPA™), Region 5.

3 Respondent is Whiting -Oil and Gas Corporation (“"Whiting™ or “Respondent™), a
corporation doing business in Michigan.

” 4. Where the parties agree to setfle one or more canses of action before the filing of

2 complaint, the administrative action.may be commcnced and concluded sitnultancously by the
issuance of 2 consent agreement and final order (“CAFO™), 40 C.F.R. § 22.13(b}.

3. The parties agree that seitling this action without the filing of a complaint or the
adjudication of any issue of fact or law is in their interest and in the public interest.

8. For:the purpose of this proceeding, Respondent consents io eniry of this CAFO,

the assessment of the ctvil penalty specified ie this CAFO, and fo the ferms of thus CAFO.



Jurisdiction and Waiver of Richt to Hearing

A Respondent admits the jurisdictional all.egations in this CAFO and neither admits
nor deni;as the factual allegations and alleged violations in this CAFO.
8. Respondent waives its right to request a hearing as provided at 40 CER.
§ 22.-15(0), a.ﬁy right to contest the aliegations in ﬂﬁs CAFO, and 1is right {o appeal ﬁu's CAFO.

Statutory and Regulatorv Backeround

New Source Performance Standards Subpart KKK

| 9. Section 111(b) of the CAA, 42 U.S5.C. § 7411(b), establishes that EPA shall
promulgate New Source Performance Standards (“NSPS”) for certain categorie;s of stationary
sources.

10. Pursuant to Section 111(e) of the' CAA, 42 U.S.C. §7411(e), after the effective
date of a promulgated NSPS, it shall be unlawful for any owner or operator of any new source to
aperate such source in violation of any NSPS applicable to such source.

1. On June 24, 1985, EPA promulgated, pursuant to Section 11 i(b) of the CAA, 42
U.S.C. § 7411(b), Subpart KKX - Standards of Performance f;)r Equipmem Leaks of VOC from
Onshore Natural Gas Processing Plants, 50 Fed. Reg. 26124 (“NSPS Subpart KKK*). Since
then, EP A has amended NSPS Subpart KKK at 51 Fed. Reg. 270i (January 21, 1986), at 63 Fed.
Reg. 61773 (October i?, 2000), and af 77 Fed. Reg. 49542 (August 16, 2012). NSPS Subpart
KKK is codified at 40 C.F.R. Part 60.

12, 7 NS?S Subvart KKK apph:es to the following affected facilities (in onshore natural
gas processing plants) that commence construction, rebonstmc‘don, or modification after fanuary
20, 1984, and on or before August 23, 2011: a compressor in Volatile Organic Compognd

(*“VOC™) service or in wet gas service; and the group of all equipment (except compressors)



" defined in 40 C.ER. § 60.631 within a process umit. See 40 C.F.R. § 60.630(a)_. A compressor
station, dehydratidn unit, sweetening unit, underground storage tank, field gas gathering system,
or liquefied natural gas unit is covered by NSPS Subpart KKK if it is located at an onshore
natural gas processing plant site.” See 40 C.F.R. § 60.630({:)-. :

13. For purposes of NSPS Subpart KKK, “equipment” is defined in 40 C.F.R.

§ 60.631 as meaning “each pump, pressure relief dcvicé: open-ended valve or line, valve,
compressor, and flange or other connector that 1s in VOC service or in wet gas service, and any
device or systein required by tiﬁs subpart.” |

14, 40 C.F.R. § 60.632(a) states that each OWU-B-I‘_ or operator subject to the provisions
of NSPS Subpart KKK shall comply with the following requirements of Subp.art VV - Standards
of Performance for Equipment Leaks of VOC in the Synthetic Organic Chemicals Manufacturing
Industry for which Consiruction, Reconstruction, or Medification Commenced Afier January 5:.
1981, and an or before November 7, 2006, 40 C.F.R. Part 60 (“NSPS Subpart VV™): §§ 60.482-1.
(a), (b), and (d) and 60.482-2 through 60.482-10, except as provided in § 60.633, as soon as
practicable, but no later than 180 days after mitial sté.r‘tup. .

15.  NSPS Subpart VV at 40 C.F.R. § 60.482-7 sets forth Leak Detection and Repair
 (“LDAR®) standards for valves in gas/vapor and in light }iquid service, including the réquirement .
at 40 C.F.R. § 60.482-7(a)(1) that each valve be monitored monthly to detect leaks by the |
methods specified in 40 CF.R. § 60.48 5({b), and the requirement at § 60,482-7(d)(1) that; when a
Jeak is detected, it shaii_ be repaired as soon as practicable, but no laer than 15 calendar days
after the leak is detected, unless delav of repair standards apply under § 50.482-9,

16.  NSPS Subpart VV at 40 CF.R. § 60.482-2 sets forth LDAR requirements for

pumps in light Yiquid service, including the requirement at § 60.482-2(a) that sach purnp shall be



" inonitored to detect leaks by the methods specified § 60.483(5); and the requifeinient at §'60.452-
2(c)(1) that, when a leak is detected, 1t shéll be repaired as soon as practicable, but no later than
15 calendar days after the leak is detected, unless delay of repair standards apply under § 60.482-
N : , :

7. NSPS Subpart VV at 40 C.F.R. § 60.485(1}) reQuires owners and operators to
deterrnine compliance wiih applicable standards using Method 2]A.

18. NSPS Subpart VV at 40 C.F.R: § 66.482-4 provides standards spectiic to pressure
relief devices in gas/vapor service and provides, in part, the following:

a. Except during pressure releases, pressure relief devices in gas/vapor service are 10
be operated witﬁ no.detectable emissions (i.e., instrument reading of less than 500 parts per
miﬂio:; (*ppm™) above background as determined pursuant to the methods specified in §‘
60.485(c)).

b. Except as provided in the § 60.482-9 delay of repair provisions, 2 pressure reliel
device is required to be retumned to a condition of no detectable emissions as soon as practicable
_ but no Jater than 5 calendar days afier a pressure release and shall be monitored to confirm the
conditions of no detectable emissions.

c. Préssﬁre relief devices routed to a process or fuel gas system or equipped witﬁ a
closed vent system capable of capturing and transporting leakage from a pressure relief device to
a control device described in § 60.482-10 are exempted from the above specified requirements.

19.  NSPS Subpart KKK at 40 C.F.R. § 60.633 provides that each owner or operator
subject 1o NSPS Subpart KKK may comply with the exceptions to the provisions of NSPS
Subpart V'V, as specified under § 60.633. 40 C.F.R. § 60.633(b)(1) states pressure relief devices

in gas/vapor service may be monitored quarterly and within 5 days afier each pressure release to



ot foaic by s methods specified in § 60485(6) eeapi a6 providéd in ™
8§ 60.632(c), 60.633(b)}(4), and 60.482-4(a) through (c}. 40 C.F.R § 60.633(d) exempts pumps
in light liquid service, valves in gas/vapor and light liquid service, and pressure relief devices at
nonfractionating plants with design capacities less than 10 Million Standard Cubic feet per Day
(“MI\’IéCFD”) of field gas frém the routine monitoring requiremeﬁts of §§ 60.482-2(a)(1),
60.482-7, and 60.633(b)}(1).

20. 40 C.FR.§60.632(e) of NSPS Subpart KK_K states that each owner or operator
vsubj ect to the provisions of this subpart shall comply with the recordkeeping and reporting
provisions of 40 C.E.R. §§ 60.486 and 60.487 except as proif.“ided m §§ 60.633, 60‘635:A;and

60.636. 40 CF.R. § 60.486(1) of NSPS Subpart V'V, as referenced in NSPS Subpart KKK at

40y

§ 60.632(e} and 60.635(a), staies that an analysis demoqs&ating the design capacity of the
affected facility shall be r(;corﬁed in a log that i.;; kept in a readily accessible .l‘ocation for use in
determining exemptions as provided in 40 C.F.R. § 60.480(d).

| 21 INSPS Subpart VV at 40 C.F.R. § 60.482-10(d) stat.es that flares used to comﬁy
~ with this subpart shall comply with the requirements of 40 CFR. §60.18 40CFR.
§ 60.633(g) of NSPS Subpaﬁ KKK states that flares used 10 comply with this Subpaxi shall
c-omply with the requitements of 40 C.F.R. § 60.18 under thé NSPS General Provisions.

la. 40 C.F.R. § 60.18(c)(1) siates that 1lares shall be designed ior and operated with

no visible emissions as determined pursuant to the methods specified in paragfaph (). except for
periods noi to e:;Lceed a total of 3 minutes during any 2 consecutive hours. - |
b. 40 C.F.R. § 60.18(c)(2) states that flares shall be operated with a flame present at

. all times, 25 determined by the methods specified in paragraph (f).

wn

K



¢. 40 C.F.R. §60.18(d) states that owners or operators of flares used to comply with
the provisions of Part 60 shall monitor these control devices to ensure that they are-operated and
‘maintained in conformance with their deéigus, and applicable subparts will provide provisions
stating how owners or operators of flares shall monitor these contral devices. |
d. 40 C.E.R. § 60.18(e) states that flares used to comply with provisiens of Part 60
shall be operated at all times when emissions may be \l'ented‘to'them.
e. 40 C.F.R. § 60.18(f)(2) states that the presence of a flare pilot flame shali be
monitored using a thermocouple or any other equivalent device to detect the presence of a flame.
22.  The NSPS General Provisions, at 40 C.F.R. § 60.11(d), require that at all times,
including periods of startup, shutdown, and maifunction, owners and operzators shall, to the
extent practicable, maintain-and operate any affected facility inclu&ing assorciated air pollution
control equipment in a manner consistent with good air potiution control practice for minimizing
eImissions.

National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Polhutants Subpart HH

23, Section 112(d) of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7412(d), specifies that EPA shall |
promulgate Nati(:;nal Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants (“NESHAPs”) for certain
source categones of Haz_ardous Air Pollutant ("HAP™) emissions. |

24, Séctio‘n H20)(3) of the CAA, 42 US.C. § 7412(1)(3), provides that after the
eifective date of any emission standard, limitation, or regulation promulgated pursuant to Section
112 of the CAA, no person may operaie a source in violation of such standard, limitation, or
regulation except, in the case of an existing scurce, the EPA shall establish 2 compliance date or

tes for each ¢ategory of existing sources which shall provide for compliance as expeditiously



| as practicable, but in no event later than 3 years afler the éffective date of such standard subject
to limited exception. |
.25. On june 17, 1999, EPA promulgated, pursuant to Section 112(d} of the CAA, 42
U.S.C. § 7412(d), Subpart HH - National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutémts from
. Oil and Namra:] Gas Production Facilities, 64 Fed. Reg. 32628 (“NESHAP Subpart HH{”). Since
then, EPA has amended NESHAP Subpart HH at 66 Fed. Reg. 34550 (J uﬁe- 29, 2001), at 72 Fed.
Reg. 36 (January 3, 2007), and at 77 Fed. Reg. 49568 {August 16, 2012). These standards are
- codified at 40 C.F.R. Part 63. |
26. 40 C.F.R. § 63.760 of the NESHAP Subpart HH states the subpart applies to
specific eimission points that are located at oil and natt_lmi gas production facilities that are area
sources of HAP as defined 1n 40 C.F R. § 63.761 énd either précess: upgrade, or store
hydrocarbon liquids or thai prbcess, up grade, or store natural gas prior to the point at which
natural gas'enters the namural gas transmission and storage source c'atego'ry or 1s delivered to a
final end user. 40 C.F.R. § 63.760(b)(2) of the NESHAP Subpart HH. states that for area sources
of this type, the affected source includes each Triethylene Giycol .{"TEG") dehydration unit
located at the facitity. 40 C.F.R. § 63.760(f)(3)(ii) states that the compliance date for an owner
or operator of an affected aree; Source -:hat- 15 not located withﬁ any Urbanized Area plus offsel
and Urban Cluster boundary, as defined in 40 C.F.R. § 63.761, is January 5, 2009.
27. 40 C.F R §63.764(e)(1)1) of the NESHAP Subpart HH states that the owner or
operator of an area source is exempt from the requirernents of § 63.764(d) if the actual am_mél
average flowrate of natural gas to the glveol dehydration unit 15 less than 83 thousand standard

cubic meters per day, except that the records of the determination of these criteria oust be



maintained as required in 40 C.F.R. § 63.774(d)(1). 40 C.FR. § 63.774(d)}(1X3) states that an |
owner or operator of a glycol dehydration unit that me_cté the exemption criteria in

§ 63.764(3)(.1)6) shall maintain ﬂfne record of the actual annual averagé natural gas throughput (1n A
terms of natural gas flowrate to the glycol dehydration unit per day)- for that glycol dehydration
umt.

State Implementation Plan Permit tc Install Requirements

.28. Section 110(a)}(1) of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7410(a)(1), requires each staie 10
adopt and submit to EPA for approval a State Implementation Plan (“SIP*} that provides for the
implementation, maintenance, and enforcernent of the National Ambient Air Quality Standards
(“NAAQS™). Under Section liO(a) ofthe CAA,42US.C. § 7410(&),-63011 SIP must include a
permit program {o regulate the modification and construction of any étaﬁonary source of air
pollution as necessary to assure that NAAQS are achieved. Pursuant to Section 113(2) and {b) of
the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7413(a) and (b), upon EPA approval, SIP requirements are federally
enforceable, Under 40 C.F.R. § 52.23, any peﬁm't limutation or condition contained within a
permit issued under an EPA-a?ﬁbroved program that is incorporated in a SIP, is a requirement of
the SIP, and is federally enforceable under Section 113 of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § T413.

29. On May 6, 1980, EPA approved Michjgan Rule 336.1201, “Permits to Install ” as
 part of the federally enforceable SIP for the State of Michigan. 45 fed. Reg. 29790 May 6,

1980).

Permit No. 529-87
30.  The Michigan Departrnent of Natural Resources (“MDNR™) issued Permit No.

529-87 on July 30, 1987, which contains the following conditions at the non-fractionating natural



gas processing facility owned ?aﬁ&'bii‘éi:éféﬁmﬁf\\ﬁﬁt'iﬁgl‘éﬁawfb:caw.d in West Branch, Michigan
{(*West Branch Gas Plant™}.
. a. Special Condition 14 states that there shall be no visible emissions from the .

natural gés processing facihity.

| b. Special Condition 15 states that there shall be no visible émissions from the flare,
except as provided for in Subpart KKK

¢. Appendix A, Prelimiﬁar_y Leak Detection and Maintenance Plan, of Permit No.

529-87, states that “[t]he flare will bc; opergted with a flame present at all times; and be designed
for and operated with no visible emissions except for periods not to exceed a total of five
minutes during any two consecutive hours. The flare will also comply with exut velocity

limitations specified in {40 C.F.R. § 60.18] during normal operations.”

Permit No. 544-88_

31.  The MDNR issued Permit No. 544-88 on Oc_tobcr a1, ‘1.988, which contains the .
following conditions applicainle to the condensate truck unlead and storage facility assoaiated -
with the West Branch Gas Plant:

a. Special Condition 14 states that there shall be no visible f:missions from
the condensate storage tani( or flare (i.e, the equipment).

b. Special Condition 16 statés that the applicant shall not operalAe the
equipment unjess the flare is mSLanao and operating properly.

FPermit No. 706-95

32 Onm D&cem’ber i1, 1996, the Michigan Department of Eovironmental Quality
(“MDEQ™) Air Quality Division approved a Permit to Install {Permit No. 709-96) for ceriam

equipment at the West Branch Gas Plant in response 1o a permit application from Marathon Oil



.."Coﬁ.:‘lpany (“MOC”). Whiting becaime subject to Permit No. 709-56 subsequent to acquiring the
equipment subject to the pernit on or about September 1, 2002.

33, Permit No. 709-96 contains the following conditions:

a. Special Condition 15 states that the éwner and operator shall calculate the actual
emission levels for various specified air pollutants based on a 12 month period, rolled monthly
using Appendix A of the permut.

b. Special Condition 19 states that the OWTIET OF Operator of the source shall conduct
all necessary maintenance and make all necessary attempts to keep all components of the process
e,q‘u.ipmenl in proper operating condition at-all times.

c. Special Condition 20 states that operation of 0il and gas production facility with a
erude oil or condensate storage tank having a capacity equal to or greater than 952 barrels, and
the crude o1l or condensate having a true vapor bressure_: of greater than ]_.5 psia, shall not operate
the tank(s} unless the pelluiion control equipment is nstalled and operating properly.

34, Section | IB(aj(]) ofthe CAA, 42 US.C. § 7413(a)(1), authonzes the
Am§lmtor of EPA (“the Administrator™) 1o issue an administrative penalty order in
accordance wlilh Sectjglgl_ 71_13(d) of the C‘\A 42 U.8.C. § 7413(d), whenever, among ofher |
things, the Adminisirator finds that any person has violated or is in violation of a requirement or
_prohibiﬁén of an applicable SIP or permut.

35.  Secton 113(a)(3) of the CAA, 42 US.C. § 7412(a}3), authorizes the
Adminisirator to 1ssue an administrative eﬁa]ty order in acéordance with Section 113(d) of the
CAA, 42 US.C. § 7413(d), whenever, among oiher things, the Administrator finds that any

person has vioiated or is in violaton of a requirement or prohibition of Section 111 of the CAA,

10



aryNSPS romulgated under Section 111 of the CAA, Section 112 of the CAA, and any
NESHAP promulgated under Section 112 of the CAA.

| 36.  The Administrator may assess a civil penalty of up to $37,500 per day of violation
up 1o a total of $295,000 for violations that occurred between fanuary 12, 2009 and December 6,
2013 under Section 113(d)(1) of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7413(d)(1), and 40 C.F.R. Part 9.

37. Section 113(d)(1) of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7413(d)(1} limits the Administrator’s
authority to matters where the ﬁr‘st zileged date of violation occwired no more than 12 months
prior to im'tiafiot"l of the admiuistrative action, except where the Administrator and the Attorney
General of the United States joinﬂy determine that a matfer involving a ionger penod of violation -
1s appropriate for an administrative penalty action.

38, The Administrator and the Attomev General of the United States, eaéh through
their respective gelegates, have determined jointly that an administrative penalty action is
appropriate for the period of violations alleged m this CAFO.

Complainant’s Factual A!leééﬁ'ons and Alleged Violations

39, Whiting is a corporatién doing business in the state of Michigan.

40.  Whiting is a “person” as defined in Section 302(e) of the CAA, 42 US.C. -
§ 7602(e). |

41. Whiting has indicated to EPA that on or about Au@3t 24, 2014, patural gas liquid
gxtraction a.nd processing at the Wesi-Branch Gas Plant ceased and equipment associated with
narural gas liquid extraction and process (e.g., cryogenic unit, condensate stabilizer, and narural
gas liquid storage) was phvsically disconnected and femoved from the facility or awaiting

removal from the facility. Whiting further has indicated to EPA that after August 24, 2014 the

1}



[ —— solely 1o gather. dehydrate, and compross natural sas Whiting s Femsmea
the facility the West Branch Production Gathering and Compression Facility.

42, Whiting owns and operates the _faciljty that previous to August 24, 2014 was
named the West Branch Gas Plant located 'ét 2251 Simmons lRoad_. West Branch, Michigan and
is now named the West Branch Production Gathering and Compression Facility.

43, On April 4, 2012, EPA conducted an inspection of the West Branch Gas Plant.
hereafter referred to as the “Apnl 2012 Inspection.”

44, During the Apsil 2012 Inspection, EPA personnel observed the following:

a. Visible emissions from the flare that exceeded five consecutive minutes; and
b. Hvdrocarbons being emitted from the flzre stack when the pilot light was not it
using the FLIR® infrared camera. EPA personnel recorged a video of the occurrence.
45, Aferthe April 2012 Inspection, EPA issued an information request dated August |
9, 2012 to Whiting concerning CAA compliance at the West Branch Gas Plant.
46, Whiting submitted a response to the information request on or about August 31,
2012, Septerﬁber 21, 2012, and October 15, 2012

47, OnJanuary 8, 2013, EPA issued Notice of Violation/Finding of Violation (No.
EPA-5-13-MI-02) (“NOV/FOV") that identified alleged violations up through the date of the
NOV/FOV of NSPS Subpart KKK, NESHAP Subpart HH, Permit No. 529-87, Permit No. 544-
88, and Permit No. 709-96 at Paragraphs 44 through 38 of the NOV/FQV. Whiting subseqpen-tly
responded to the NOV/FOV.

48. At the tme of the April 2012 Inspection and subsequent information request

responses in September and October 2012, the West Branch Gas Plant constituted a “natural ges

12



N pmcessmgkplant’as deﬁnedundcr4OCFR§ 606310fNSPSSubpaJ‘t K A AT Babject T

{o the requireinents of NSPS Subpart KKK.

49, Prior to August 24, 2014, some of the West Branch Gas Plant pressure relief
devi.ccs were equipped Wiﬁl a qlosed vent system cépable of capturing and transporting leakage
of VOCs through the pressure relief devices toa flare for emissions control.

50. - The facility formerly known as the West Branch Gas Plant is an area source of

51, The TEG dehydration uxit at the facility formerly kilO\VI} as the West Branch Gas
.Plan't is an affected faci]j;“y as defined in 40 C.F.R. § 63.760 and is subject to the requireinents of
NESHAP Subpart HH.

52. Whiting has violated NSPS Subpart KKK, NSPS Subpart VV, NESHAP Subpart
HH, and Permit Nos. 529-87, 544-88, and 7093-96 ai the West Branch Gas Pian‘-f. as foll(.jws:

a. Count ! - For the period of October 2009 through April 2012, Whiting failed to
c_omﬁly with LDAR requirements under NSPS Subparts KKK and VV for valves and pumps at
the West Branch Gas Plant in violation of Section 111 of the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7411, and its
implementiné regulations at 40 C.F.R. §§ 60.482-1(a), (b), (d), 60.482-2, 60.482»10, and 60.485,
as referenced in §§ 60.632(a) and (d).

b. Count 2 —On April 4, 2012, visible emissions from the flare at the West Branch
(Gas Plant lasted longer than 5 minutes, in violation of Section 111 of the CA A, 42 U.S.C. |
§ 7411, and its implementing regulation at 40 C.F.R. § 60.1 S(C)U), Section 110 of the CAA, 42
U.S.C. § 7410, and its implementing regulation at 40 C.F.R. § 52.23, and permits issued éuisuam
to the Michigan SIP, Permit No. 525-87, Special Conditions 14 and 15, and Permit No. 544-88,

Special Condition 14.

13



c. Count3- Prior to January 31, 2013 :Wiﬁﬁﬁé"ﬁi'}éé o operate a flare T
thermocouple or equivalent device at the West Branch Gas Plant. in violation of Section 111 of
the CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7411, and its implementing regulation at 40 C.F.R. § 60.18(f)(2), Section
110 of the CAA, 42 1J.S.C. § 7410, and its ﬁnp]ementi;lg regulation a1 40 CF.R. § 52.23, and
Permit No. 709-96, Special Condition 19, 1ssued pursuant to the Michigan SiP.

d. COLM — On Apnl 4, 2012, emissions at thg West Branch G_as.P]ant were routed
to the flare when the pilot ﬂght was not lit, in violation of Section l 11 of the CAA, 42 U.S.C.
§ 7411, and its implementing regulation at 40 C.F.R. § 60.18(¢), Section 110 of the CAA, 42
U.S.C. § 7410, and its implementing regulation at 40 C.F.R. § 52.23, and Permit No. 529-87,
Special Condition 17, and Permit No. 344-88, Special Condition 16, issued ?ursuam to the
Michigan SIP.
e. Count 5 - Based on the April .201 2 inspection and responses to EPA’s information
.tequest, Whiting has failed to rieasure, caleulate, and record the net heating value of the gas, the
actual exit velocity, and the maximum pemiitted velocity of the flare as required by 40 CER
§ 60.1 8((5(3), (4), and (6). Assuch Vx_fhiting operated its; flare in vialation of Sectio_n 111 of the
CAA,42U.S.C. § 7411, and its implementing regulations at 40 C.F.R. § 60.18(¢)(3) and (5).
f. M —~ Based on Whiting’s response to EPA’s infortnation fequest, Whiting
'has failed to maintain records sufficient to demonsirate the NESHAP Subpart HH exemption
criteria for glycol dehydration units have been met, in violation of Section 112 of the CAA, 40
C.FR. § 7412, and its nnplementing regulations at 40 C.F.R. §§ 63.764(e)(1) and
63.744(d)(1HHGD).
| £. Q_o_mjt_i — Based on Whiting’s response to EPA’s information request, V\’lﬁting

underestimated compressor englne emission calculations in violation of Saction 110 of the CAA.

14



42 US.C. § 7410, and its implementing regulation at 40 C.F.R. §757.23, and Permiit No. 709:96, =

Special Condition 13, issued pursuant to the Michigan SIP.

53.  Based on analysis of the factors specified in Section 113(e) of the CAA,

42 U.S.C. § 7413(e), the facts of this case and Respondent’s cooperation, return to compliance,
and agreernent to perform a supplemental environmental project, Complainant has determined
that an appropnate civil penalty to settle this action 18 $58.230.

54, Within 30 days after the effective date of this CAFO, Respondent must pay a
$58,250 civil penalty by sending a cashier’s or certified check, pavable to “Treasurer, United
States of America,” to:

U.S. Bapk
Government Lockbox 979077
U.S. EPA Fines and Penalties
1003 Convention Plaza
Mai] Stafion SL-MO-C2-GL
St. Louis, Missouri 63101 -
The check must note Respondent’s name 2nd docket number of this CATFO.

55. Respondent must send a notice of payment that states Respondent’s name and the
docket number of this CAFC to EPA at the following addresses when it pays the penalty:

Atta: Compliance Tracker (AE-17T) _

Air Enforcement and Compliance Assurance Branch
Air and Radiation Drvision

U.S. Environmental Protecnon Agency, Region 3

77 W. Jackson Boulevard -

Chicago, Blinois 60604

Mark Palermo (C-14T)

Office of Regional Counsel ‘

U.S. Enviropmental Proteciion Agency, Region 5

77 W. Jackson Boulevard
Chicago, llinois 606064



Regional Hearing Clerk (E-157)

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 5
77 W. Jackson Boulevard ‘
Chicago, Wlinois 60604

.5 6. This civil penalty is not deductible for federal tax purposes.

57. If Respondent does not pay timely the civil penglty or any-stipl.ﬂatcd penaliles due
under Paragraph 69, below, EPA may requeét the Attorney General of the United States to bring
an action to collect any unpaid portion of the_ penaity with interest, nonpayment penalties and the
Unifed States’ enforcement expenses for ihe collection action under Section 113(d)(5) of the
CAA, 42 U.S.C. § 7413(d)(3). The vah’dity_, am{‘mm and apﬁropn’atcness of tﬁe civil penalty are
not reviewable in a collection action. |

58. Respondent must pay the following on arii,f{amount overdue under this CAFO,
Interest will accrue on any overdue amount from the date payment was due at a rate established
by the Secretary of the Treasury pursuant io 26 U.S.C. § 6621(a)}(2). Respondent must pay the
United States” enforcement expenses, including but not limited to attorneys’ fees and costs
1ncurred by the United States for collection proceedings. In addition, Respondent must pay a
quarf,érly nonpayment penalty each quarier during \.:vhjch the assessed penalty is overdue. ‘This
nonpayment penélty will be 10 percent of the aggl;egate amount of the outstanding penalties and

nonpayment penalties accrusd from the beginning of the quarter. 42 U.S.C. § 7413(d)(9).

Supplemental Environment Project

59.  Respondent must complete a supplemental environmental project (“SEP™) as
described in Paragraph 60, below, which is designed to protect public health by improving
ambient ajr quality and by reducing envirorumental asthma triggers and adverse respiratory health

conditions.
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60. Description of SEP. Respondent shall provide for the replacement of two mid-
1990s model year diesel—ﬁowcrcd school buses'mmed and operated by the West Branch Rose
City Area Schools Transportation Depamncﬁt {“Recipient”) in West Branch, Michigan with t\;.'o.
ne\.v diesel-powered school buses that teet 2614 or newer emission standards. Respondent must
expend at least $204,280 for the implementation of the SEP. Each diesel engine configuration of
an old school bus replaced under this SEP shall be rendered permanently disabled and disposed
of so that the old diese! engine configuration cannot be resold or reused.

61.  Project Completion Date. Completion of the SEP must occur by no later than 180

days after the Effective Date of thiz CAFQ. In its sole discretion, EPA may gran: additional time
10 complete the SEP.

62. Respondent certifies that Whiting Ol and G.as Corporation 15 not reguired to
perform or develop the SEP by any law, régula_tion, order, or agreement or-as injunctive relief as
of the date that | am signing this CAFO. [ further certify that Whiting Oil and Gas Corporation
has not received, and 1s not negetiating to receive, credit for L'ne- SEP in any other enforcement
action.

63.  Respondent certifies under penalty of law that it would have agreed to perform a
comparably valued, alternative project other than a diesel emissions reduction Supplemental
Environmental Project, 1f the Agency were prechuded by law from accepting a diese] emissions
reduction _Supplemental .Environmemal Project.

64. . Respondent must submii a SEP compietion report to EPA by no later than 270
days from.the Effective Date of this CAFO, unless an extension of time ié provided by EPA in its
sole discretion. This repor: must contain the following informanion:

a. Detailed description of the SEP as completed;



b, Description of any problems executing the SEP and the actions taken to
correct the problems; ‘

C. For the SEP described in Paragraph 60, above, Respondent must provide
certification from the Recipient that the funds were spent in conformity
with the SEP as described. This certification should include an itemized
cost of goods and services used to complete the SEP documented by
copies of Invoices, purchase orders or cancelled checks that specifically
identify and 1temize the individual cost of the goods and services. If the
Recipient has not yet completed the project, certification from the
Recipient that any unused funds are being held in an account earmarked
for the specified purpose, and a target date for completion of the project;

d. Certification that Respondent has completed the SEP in compliance with
this CAFO; and
e. Description of the envirbnmental and public health benefits resulting from

the SEP (quantify the benefits and pollution reductions, if feasible).

65.  Respondent must submit the SEP completion report described in Paragraph 64 by
express-mail to the Compliance Tracker of the Air Enforcemnent and Compliance Assurance
Branch at the address provided in Paragraph 55, above.

66. In the SEP completion report, Respondent 1nus: certify that the report is true and
complete by including the following statement signed by one of its officers:

1 certify that [ am familiar with the icfornation in this document and that,
based on my inquiry of those individuals responsible for obtaining the
information, it 1S true and complete to the best of my knowledge. [ know
that there are significant penalties for submitting false information,
mcluding the possibility of fines and imprisonment for knowing violations.

67.  Following receipt of the SEP completion report described in Paragrﬁph 64, above,
EPA must notify Respondent in writing that:

a. Ii has satisfactonly completed the SEP and the SEP report;
b. Therz are deficiencies in the SEP as completed or in the SEP report, and’
EPA will give Respondent 30 davs, or addinonal time as provided by EPA

In writing, from date of Respondent’s receipt of such notice to correct ithe
deficiencies; or
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c. It has not satisfactorily completed the SEP or the SEP report, and EPA
will seek stipulated penalties under Paragraph 69, below.

55. If EPA exercises option b in Paragraph 67, above, Respondent may object in
writing to the deficiency notice within 10 .days of receiving the notice. The parties will have 30
days from EPA’s receipt of Respondent’s objection to reach an agreemient, If the parties cannot
reach an agreement; EPA will cive Respondent a written decision on its objection. Respondent
will comply with any réasonable requirement that EPA ifnposcs in 1ts decision. If Respondent
does not complete the SEP as required by EPA’s decision, Respondent will pay stipuiated
penalties to the United States under Paragraph 69, below.

69. If Respondent vielates any requirement of this CAFO relating to the SEP,
Respondent nust pay stipulated penalies to the United States as follows:

a. Except as provided in subparagraph b, below, if Respondent did not
complete the SEP satisfaciorily according to the requiremments of this
CAFO, Respondent must pay a penalty of $183,852, but Respondent will
receive credit towards the penalty amount for zny summs that were
satisfactorily expended towards the SEP pursuant to the requirements of
this CAFO. ‘ '

b. If Respondent did not complete the SEP satisfactorily, but EPA
determines that Respondent made good faith and Umely efforts o0
complete the SEP and certified, with supporting documents, that it
expended at least $183,8532, Respondent will not be liable for any
stipulated penalty under subparagraph a, above.

c. If Respondent completed the SEP satisfactorily, but spent less than
$183,852, Respondent must pay a stipulated penalty in the amount of the
difference between $183,852 and the amount actually spent.

d. If Respondent did not timely submit the SEP conipletion report required
under Paracraph 64 above, Respondent must pay penalties in the
following amounts for each day after the report was due until it submits
the report: '
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Penaltv per violation per dav Period of violation

$130 1 through 14% day
$200 15" through 30™ day
$300 31% day and beyond

70. EPA's determinations of whether Respondent completed the SEP satisfactorily
and whether Respondent made good faith and timely efforts to complete the SEP will bind
~ Respondent.

71. Respondent must pay any stipulated penalties under Paragraph 69, above, within
15 days of receiving EPA’s written demand for the penalties. Respondent will use the method of
pavment specified in Paragraph 54, above, and will pay interest and nonpayment penalties on
any overdue amounis.

72. Any public statement that Respondent makes referring to the SEP must include
the following tangnage: “Whiting O1l and Gas Corporation undertook this project under the |
seitlement of the United States Environmental Proteciion Agency’s enforcement action against
Whiting 01l and Gas Corporation for alleged violations of the Clean Air Act.”

73.  If an event occurs which causes or may cause a delay in completing the SEP as
required by this CAFO:

a. Respondent must notify EPA in writing within 10 days afier learning of an event
which caused or may cause a delay in completing the SEP. The notice must
describe the anticipated length of the delay, its cause(s), Respondent’s past and
proposed acions to prevent or minimize the delay and a schedule to cairy out
those actions. Respondent must take all reasonable actions to aveid or mininize
any delay. If Respondent fails to notify EPA according to this paragragh,
Respondent will not receive an extension of time o cotoplete the SEP.

b. If the parties agree that circumstances beyond the control of Respondent caused or
may cause a delay in completing the SEP, the parties will stupulate o an extension

of ume o longer than the period of delay.

c. If EPA does not agree that circumstances beyond the control of Respondent
caused or may cause a delav in completing the SEP, EPA will notify Respondent
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En”\'x'ﬁting of its decision and any delays in completing the SEP will not be
excused.

d. Respondent has the burden of proving that circumstances beyond its control
caused or may cause a delay in completing the SEP. Increased costs for
completing the SEP will not be a basts for an extension of time under
subparagraph b, above. Delay in acliieving an interim step will not necessarily
Justify or excuse delay 1n achieving subsequent steps.

74.  For {ederal income lax purposes, Respondent will neither capitalize into inventory

or basis, nor deduct any costs or expenditures incurred in performing the SEP.

General Provisions

75.  This CAFO resoi_ves.qnly Respendent’s liability for federal civil penaltics for the
violations alieged in this CAFO and the NOV/FOV dated January 8, 2013. |

76.  This CAFO does not affect the 1i ghts of EPA or the United States to pursue
. appropriate gjunctive or other equitable relief or criminal sanctions for any violation of law.

77.  This CAFO does pot affect Respondent’s responsibility to comply with the CAA
and other applicable federal, state and local laws. Except as provided in Paragraph 75, above,
cotnpliance with this CAFO will not be a defense to any actions subsequently commenced
pursuant to federal laws administered by EPA.

78.  Respondent certifies, based on information and belief formed after reasonable
inquiry, the West Branch Production Gathering and Compression Facili.ty is complying fully
with the provisions of the CAA and its permits.

79, Tins CAFO constitutes an *enforcement response” as that {erm 1s uéed m EPA’s
Clean Ajr Act Stati_on-ary Civil Penalty Policy to determine Respondent’s “full compliance
history™ under Section 1‘13(3) of the CAA, 42‘U.S.C. § 7413(e).

80. The terms of this CAFO bind Respondent, its successors and 2ssigns.



81.  Except as otherwise specified in this CAFO, Respondent reserves all of its ﬁghts,
remedies, and defenses in any future proceeding. This CAFQ shall not be construed to create
rights in, or grant any cause of racti'on to, any third party not party to this Consent Decree.

82.  Each person signing this consent agreement certifies that he or she has the
authority to sign for the party whom he or she represents and to bind that party to its terms.

83.  Each party agrees t-o bear its own costs and attorneys’ fegs in this action.

84.  This CAFO constitutes the entire agreement beiween the parites.

Whiting Oil and Gas Corporation, Respondent

¥/)z1] Zors . e o //1/ f7/a3rx'r“

- Date Pete Hagist

Senior Vice President, Planning
Whiting Cil and Gas Corporation

United States Environmental Protection Agency, Complainant

Yo 5 A
7

Date - George T.\Czempsak
- Dt
Airand RadiztioirPivision

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region 5
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Consent Agreement and Final Order
In the Matter of: Whitirig Qil and Gas Corporation

Bocket No. CAA-05-2015-0030

Final Order

This Consent Agreement and Final Order, as agreed to by the parties, shall become effective
immediatel y upon filing with the Regional Hearing Clerk. This Final Order concludes this

proceeding ‘pursuant to 40 CF.R. §§22.18 and 22.31. IT IS SO ORDERED.

. - 3 / o /./"?
e ‘____;‘-ﬁ_,..'.{_/ A
S 4= 2orS et o A S

Date - Susan Hedman
Regional Administrator
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Region 3



Consent Agreement and Final Order
In the Matier of: Whiting il and Gas Corporation

Docket No: CAA-05-2015-0030

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

[ certify that I served a trus and coirect copy of the foregoing Consent Agreement and Final

Order: docket number CAA-05-2015-0030

/ / ) A / 21. )f;‘ 45, this dav in the following manner to the following addressees:

kafr\
Copy by (Certified Mait
Return-Receipt Requested

, which was filed on

R. Clay Tayloer
Environmental Attomey
Whiting Oil and Gas Corporation
1700 Broadway, Surte 2300
Denver, Colorado 802%0-2300
Copy by E-mail to
Attorney for Respondent: Michasl A. Peters
mpetergfnvanwhzley com

Copy by E-mail to
Attorney for Complainant: Mark Palermo, Associate Regional Counsel
palermo.mark@epa.cov

. Copy by E-mail to
Regional Judicial Officer: Ann Coyle

covle.aunricpapoy

/'_1) :,:~——-_.__
/u;“,»’? / A i/ A A, —
Dated [ (e Y] Ry ,_\\ / /‘JJL}_‘ PM.—’C’/
L 7/ } La;Da'»m Whnehead
el ' Remﬂnal Heannc Clerk

U.S. Environmental Proteciion Agency, Region 5

f0LY ¥330 J000 Zh30 4yt

CERTIFIED MAIL RECEIPT NUMBER(S):



